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1. _Nams of Property
hlstorlc name Newman 8rothers Bullding

other names/aite numbsr  N/A

2. Locatlon
sireet & number 602-608 5. Main Streel N/ not for publication
city, town Joplin N/ B vicinity
state  Missouri code MU county -asper code 77 2lp code 64804
3. Classification
Qwnership of Propatty Catagory of Proparty Number of Resourcea within Proparty
% private [2(] bullding(s) Contributing Noencontributing
public-local [T distriet 1 a _ bulldings
Clpublic-State [ site o 0 _sites
("] public-Fadaral [T structure o _0 structures
[_] object o 0___ objscts
1 Q Total
Name of reiated multipte property listing: Numbar of contributing resources praviocusly
N/A listed in the National Register N8
4. State/Federal Agency Certification {
1 .

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservapign Act gf 1986, as amended, [ hereby certity that this
Enominatlon D raquest for detérminatio
Nationa! Registar of Historic Pla

In my opinion, the property (%] heet

Signature of certitying officls! G/ Tracy :zhén IiI ﬂiréctor

Department of Natural Resourcés and SYate Historic Preservation Officer
State or Federal agency and bureau T j

In my opinion, the property [ meets L—_]does not mest the National Register criteria. ("] see continuation sheet.

Signature of commenting or other official Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

5. National Park Service Certification
1, hereby, certify that this propenty is:
[Jentered in the Nationa! Register.
I:] See continuation sheet.
[) determined eligible for the National
Register. DSee continuation sheet.
[:Ideterm_ined not eligible for the
National Ragister.

["]removed from the National Register.
I:]olher. (explain:)

Signature of the Keeper Date of Action
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6. Function or Use
Historic Functions (entar calegories from Insiructans)

Current Functions (anter categories from instructions)

COMMEDCE 77200 _ “a~a--=enr SToTS TOMMESTE JTSACE - Spaciatty Stare
SEZSTATION AND A TUEE - Musies Facjlity
7. Description

Architectural Classsficatiun Matariats {antar categornes fram instructions)

{anter categories from instructions)

- foundation Concrete
LATE 19TH AND EARRLY 207H CENTURY -y Ty
AMERICAN MOVEMENTS - Chicaqo
roct Asphalt
other Capger
Steel

Describa presant and historic physical appearance.

The Newman Brothers Building is a twopart, five-bay, rectanqular plan,
five-story commercial buillding constructed in 1910. The design of the Newman
Brothers Building shows influences of the Chicago Style with the large expanses
of glass on each floor and well definad storefront and comice. The tulding has
major facades facing both 6th Street and Main Street and has an criginal
storefrant and upper story detailing on both facades. The west facade faces an
alley and has no decarative detailing. On the south facade the bullding shares a
party wall with a two-stary masonry structure and above this party wall the
building has minimal detafling.

The Newman Brothers Bullding is located in downtown Joplin, Missouri (1980
pop. 40,100). The bulding cccupies a prominent comer lot in the historc
commercial section of the city along Main Street. Like most cther commercial
buildings on Main Street the bullding is sited on a rectangular lot, is flush with
the sidewalk, and ocoupies all of the lot. There are mo outhuildings. The
building has primary entrances and storefronts facing both 6th Strast and Main
Street, The building's exterior has nct been dgnificantly altered and # retains
its criginal historic character.

The storefront on the Main Street facade consists of five bays with the central
bay containing the facade's primary entrance. This entrance has two sets of
adginal wood and glass douhle doors of single light paneled design. Above each
st of doors is a rectanqular single light transom. Flanking the doors are small
d&isplay windows which are elliptcal in form and have elliptical glass panels
resting on stone bulkheads. The display windows in the flanking bays have
copper or steel muntin bars and rest on stone bulkheads or slis. Above the
display windows is a cast iron transom bar decorated with a Greek fret band. -

Above each transom bar is a three light transom with wood muntin bars,
Dividing each storefront bay are stwne Dodc pilasters. Extending above the
display windows is an crginal cast iron cancpy supported by large brackets and
decorative rods anchorad into the face of the building. This canopy has roof
detailing of finials designed as small bound torches and a single light and cast
iron valence. The glass lights of the valence have been painted in recent years.
The canopy supporct brackets alao coatain adginal hanging glass globe fxtures.

[Z]See continuation sheel
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Above the storefront is a stone entahlature and cornice. The second, third, and
fourth stories have identical plan arrangements and detailing, Each story is
divided into five bays with each bay containing tri-part Chicago Style windows.
Each window has a central fixed rectangular light with flanking single light
hinged casement windows. Above each window is a rectangular dngle light
transom. Each window has a stone dll, racketed sheet metal lintel, and cormer
floral and ribbon medallions. Between each window on the second, third, and
fourth stories are recessed brick panels in the gpandrels. At the third story
central window iIs a cast iron balcony with its rmiling resdng on a stone
platform. The platform is supported by stone valute brackets and beneath are
stone modillion blocks, The riling has square balusters and inset wreaths which
contain the letter "N".

Dividing the fourth and fifth stories is a copper cornice with hall and rbbon
medallions, Above the fifth story is a large projecting copper cornice with
modillion blocks, valuted brackets, egg and dart molding, and acroterions at the
rocfline. Between each bay is a relief of a lion's head deﬂgn and copper

cartouches. Below the cartouches are wreaths which contain ariginal electdc
light glass globes and below the wreaths are copper strips arranged in the letter
IIN".

The Sixth Street facade has a similar five-hay confiquration and is identical in
all respects to the Main Street facade with only a few exceptions. At the
storefront on this facade the orginal single light glass and frame doors have
been removed and replaced with ca. 1970 solid wood docrs. Several windows on
the wper stories of this facade have been covered with plywood and the
reofline lacks electric glass globes,

The rear, or west, facade is divided into Bve bays and has an exteror of five
course common bond brick. Entrances on the first story face an alley and have
ca. 1970 glass and metal doors. Windows on each floor are three-over-three
vertical light sash with stone sills and wire glass lights. The upper facade
windows are grouped together in threes on each floor. At the roofline is a brick
smokestack far the heating system and also on the rear facade is an coriginal
full. height steel fire escape. The south facade shares a party wall with an
adicent two-story brick building. The upper floors have a five course common
bond exterior and three light vertical sash windows. Above the fifth story on
this facade is a raised brick penthouse story which houses the building's
elevator machinery and mechanical rooms.
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8. Statement ot Significance
Cerlitying oHicial has considered the significance of this property in relation to other properties:
D nationally [:] statewide E(:] locally

Applicable Nationa! Register Criteria A e [Xc o

} Criteria Considerations (Exceptions) A s e (Jo [Je DF DG

Areas of Significance {enter categories from instructions) Pariod of Significance Significant Dates
Commerce 1910-1939 1910
Architecture 1910 1910

Culturai Affiliation

N/A
Significant Parson Architect/Builder
N/A Allen, BAustin--Architect

State significance of property, and justify criteria, criteria considerations, and areas and periods of significance noted above.

The Newman Brothers Building in Joplin, Missouri, is significant under Criterion
A and € for its role in city commerce and its architectural design. The building
was constructed in 1910 as one of the city’'s largest and finest department

stores and the business held commercial prominence during much of the early

20th century. The building's design is reflective of the Chicago Style of
commercial architecture and it remains as the city's most representative
high-rise example of this style. The Newman Brothers Building retains the
majority of its original storefront and interior detailing and alterations to the
building have not been extensive. The building is presently under rencvation on
the basement and first floor levels for commercial use. '

Joplin is situated in the southwest corner of Missouri and this area was
originally farmland containing a few residences and stores in the early 19th
century. The discovery of extensive lead deposits in the 18505 brought attention
to the area,_but it was not until after the Civil War that mining efforts became
significant. In 1871, landowner John Cox platted a seventeen acre townsite on
Joplin Creek to take advantage of the many miners coming to the area. Later

that year a newspaper in Carthage wrote of a "new town in Jasper County. Its

name is Joplin, and it is located fourteen miles southwest of Carthage on the

farm of J.C. Cox. Tt has lead in unli&ited quantities under it. Everybody out of
employment ought to go there and dig."

The lead mining boom resulted in the establishment of Joplin as a major

community by the late 19th century. From a temporary mining camp of tents

and frame dwellings, the town grew to a city of 26,000 by 1900. Stone and
brick churches, schools, and social buildings were constructed in these years and
residential areas expanded to the east and west from the commercial section
along Main Street. Numerous German immigrants came to Joplin and started
industries such as a cigar manufacturing plant, a brewery, and woolen mill.

[X] see continuation sheet
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9. Major Bibilographical References

[{an continuation sheat
Previcus documentation an flie (NP8): n/a

() preiiminary determination of individual listing (38 CFR &7) Primary location of additienal data;
has been requsated sml historic preservation office
previcusly listad In the National Register L_] Other State agency
previcusly determined aligible by the Nationsl Regiater || Federal agency
designated a Natlona| Historle Landmark [ ILocal government
recorded by Historlc American Buildings [ Tuniversity
Survey # (Jother

[CJrecorded by Historic Amarican Englneering Specify rapository:

Record #

10. Geographical Data
Acreage of property ._ |l ess than 1 acre

UTM References

All]il|§|515|51515{ll.lnﬂﬂl'ﬂ?:ﬂl‘ﬂ BL_.I_}[_L_I_LL_.LJ a4ty
Zone  Easting Northing Zona  Easting . Northing
el by Lo e bbby by el ol L Ly bbbyl

DSee continuation sheet

Verbal Boundary Description

The nominated property occupies Lots 21 and 22 of Pitcher's Addition,
City of Joplin.

DSee continuation sheet

Boundary Justification cq s .
The boundary for the Newman Brothers Building includes all property
which has historically been associated with the building.

[(]See continuation sheat

11. Form Prepared By
nameAiitie L. Philip Thomason/ Teresa Srum

organization __Thomason and Associates date __11/2/89
street & number _P 0 Box 121225 telephone __g15.3283.0027
city or town Nashyille state _ TN zip code 37212

*U 8GR0 1088-0-223-12
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One of the German families which came to Joplin in these years was that of
Joseph Newman. Joseph Newman 2migrated to Pennsylvama from Germaay
before the Civil War and opened a clothing store in Harrisburg® Disatisfiad with
his business, Newman moved his family to Pierce City, Missouri, in 1871 and
founded the Newman Mercantile Company, selling dothing, gentlemen's
furnishings, boots, and shees. Newman became a prominent resident of Pierce
City but the growth and development in Joplin caught Newman's attention. In
1898, Newman sent his son Albert, and son-in-aw, Gabe Newbwrger, to Jegplin to
cpen a store at the comer of Fourth and Main Streets. This store immediately
prospered and a few years later the store moved to a larger locaton at S17 S.
Main Strset.

Newman's decision to open a store in Joplin made good husiness sense. In the
'1890s Joplin began a perod of intendve growth and development which lasted
until 1920. Between 1900 and 1920 the community grew from a population of
26,000 to 33,500, and it became the major commercial center for the Tri-~State
region of Missouri, Oklahoma, and Arkansas.® The lead and zinc mines in the
area were some of the most productive in the country and Joplin was the
commercial and residential center of this mining area. Main Street became
transformed during these years as numerous masonry commercial and puklic
buildings were constructed.

By the eady 1900s the shcpping habits of the country had become mare
sophisticated, resulting in the dse of large department stores in major urban
areas. High-rise department stores offering a wide selection of merchandise
became popular among shoppers and, by 1910, Joseph Newman's sons Albert and
Sal felt that Joplin was ready for suwch a store. A large lot containing several
small buildings was purchased at the southwest cormer of Sixth and Main Streets
and construction began on a ﬁve-s:sry department store which would contain
50,000 square feet of shopping area.

Joglin architect Austin Allen was selected to design this building which was to
be one of the largest ever built in the city. Allen grew up in Joplin and later
studied architecture at the University of Pennsylvania and in Eurcope. He worked
for a New York architectural firm for several years before returning to Joplin
in 1905. Allen became a noted architect of the cty and gned a number of
residences and commercial buildings between 1905 and 1817.7~ His dedign for the
Newman Brothers Bullding fallowed the influence of the popular Chicago Style
with a transparent skin over the structural skeleton.
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Newman Brothers Building, Joplin, Missouri

Allen’s design for the building called for concrete and steel construction with
large expanses of windows on the main facades facing Main and Sixth Streets.
Windows influenced by the Chicago Schoal were added with large central
rectangular lights flanked by narrow hinged casement lights. Exterior detailing
featured a large copper cornice at the roofline and cast iron balconies. The
interior was composed of large open spaces on each floor supported by concrete
and steel calumns. The Newman Brothers Building was considered one of Allen's
finest designs in the twelve years in which he practiced, and upen his untimely
death at age thirty-six in 1917, he was widely regarded as one of the area's
leading architects. The Newman Brothers Building and the Elk's Club Lodge (NR,

1985} are regarded as his finest designs built in Joplin.

The opening of the Newman Brothers Building in 1310 was heralded as a malor

event in Joplin, The Joplin News Herald reported that "no achievement
accomglished in the city of Joplin stands out so deardy as a monument to the

dlanning and ]abor which it brought forth," and called it a "palatlal home of

merchandizing." 12rhe day of the grand opening featured a thirty piece symphony

and hundreds of patrons passed through the doors. Shoppers were greated by a

sumptuous interior with crnate gilded dlasterwork, parguet floors, hbronze

elevators, and an omate cast iron staircase. Across the storefront on both 6th

and Main Streets was a large cast iron awning to shield patrons from inclement -

weather. Upon its completion the building cost $150,000 while interior fixtires .

and elevators cost an additional $100,000. At the roof the company erected the

largest illuminated sign in Joplin. 1°

Newman Brothers was the city's best known department store during much of
the eady 20th century. By 1913, the store employed 200 salespersons and dlerks
with an annual payrall of $75, 000 and had annual sales of over cne million

" dallars14The value of the building and its merchandise was estimated to be over
$500,000, As a center for shopping Newman Brothers overshadowed all other
department stores of the pedod in Jogplin such as Chdstman's and Ramsey's. The
store specialized in men's and women's cdlothing but also sold furniture,
household goods, and many other items.

The Newman Brothers company prospered throughout the 1920s and expanded
cperations in the Midwest. In 1922, they purchased the Kennedy Dry Goods
Company in Enid, Oklahoma flgld in 1928 bought the Denneky Dry Goods
Company in Cedar Rapids, JTowa.~ The Depression of the 1930s ended this pedod
of expansion. However, the company was ahle to continue operation of its
stores, including the flagship store in Joplin, Newman Brothers continued to be
regarded as Joplin's finest departiment store during these years.
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Fdlowing Warld War II, Newman Brothers once again expanded, opening stores
in several states. The company cpened branch stores in Sprngfeld, Missour,
Hutchinson, Kansas, and Midwest City, Oklahoma. In Joplin a furniture division
was opened at 8th and Main Streets and a furniture annex store was opened at
286 $. Main Street.'® The company had continued success for two decades, but
by the mid-196Js the cpening of suburban shopping centers and changes in
retailing resulted in a decline in sales at the orginal Newman Brothers Building.
In 1972, the company left its downtown building and moved into the Narthpark
Mall on the edge of the city. The building was sold to the Pentecostal Church
of God which used it as a puhlishing house and bookstore.. This denomination
owned the building until its recent sale to the present owners . who are
renovating the basement and first floor levels into a teen center with a dance
floor and shoos, 17

Recent rencvations to the building have retained the original storefront and

wper facade detailing., Interior renovations have included some subdivision of

the odginal first floor area, however, these changes are largely the addirion of

temporary partition walls and no extensive removal of odginal detailing has

occurred. The Newman Brothers Building continues to exhihit its original design

and detailing and is the city's finest remaining example of a high-rise Chicago

Style commercial building. Through its architectural design and wmercantdle -
heritage the Newman Brothers Building is a significant structure of Joplin, :
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Major Bikliographical Sources
Joplin Globe, 26 February 1989

"Joplin, Missouri, Architectural/Historical Inventory." Missourd Office of Historic
Preservation, 1987.

Joplin News Herald, 10 November 1910

Kirkman, Kay, and Roger Stinnett. Joplin: A Pictorial History. Norfaolk/Virginia
Beach: Donning Company, 1981.

Longstreth, Richard. The Buildings of Main Street. Washington, D.C.:
Preservation Press, 1987.

Renner, G.K. Joplin: From Mining Town to Urban Center. Northridge, California:
Windsor Publications, 1985.

"Souvenir Book of Joglin®, 1913. Manuscript on file at the Joplin Public Library.
Notes

1. Joplin, Missouri. "Architectural/Historical Inventory." Missouri Office of
Historic Preservation, 1987.

2. Kay Kirkman and Roger Stinnett, Joplin: A Pictorial History
(Narfalk/Virginia Beach: Donning Company, 1981), 15. :

3. Ihid.
4, Thig, 63.

5. Thid, 25.

6. G.K. Renner, Joplin: From Mining Town to Urban Center (Northhridge,
California; Windsor Publications, 1985), 100.

7. IHid.

8. Kirkman and Stinnett, Joplin: A Pictorial History, 101.

9, Renner, Joplin: From Mining Town to Urban Center, 100.
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10. Joglin Globe, 2 March 1917, p. 4.
11. Joglin, Missouri, "Architectural/Historical Inventory.”

12. Joglin News Herald, 10 November 1910, p. L.

13. Renner, Joplin: From Mining Town to Urban Center, 101,

14. "Souvenir Book of Joplin", 1913. Manuscript on file at Joplin Public
Library, unpaginated.

15. Renner, Joplin: From Mining Town to Urban Center, 10l.

16. Ihid.

17. Joplin Globe, 26 February 1989, Section 2, Page 2.
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P. 0. Box 176
Jefferson City, Missouri 65102
Date: May 30, 1990
Telephone: 314/751-5368




m&m 10-000-¢ OME Approved Ne. 1034-0078

United States Dapartment of the Interlor
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

oh 1 i s . . .
Section number fhotos  Page 1 ___ Newman Brothers 8uilding, Joplin, Missouril

Photograph Continuation Sheet, Newman Brothers Building

Newman Brothers Building

602~608 S. Main Street

Joplin, Jasper County, Missouri

Photo by: Thomason and Associates

Date: June, 1989

Neg: City Planning Office, Joplin, Missouri

Photo # 1 of 8

View: Main and 6th Street facades, view towards southwest.

Photo # 2 of 8
View: 6th Street facade, view towards southwest.

Photo # 3aof 8 .
View: Main Street facade, view towards southwest.

Photo # 4 of B
View: View of first floor interior showing Ionic calumns, cast iron staircase,
mezzanine level and railing.

Photo # 5of 8
View: View of cast iron staircase connecting the mezzanine and second story
levels,

Photo # 6 of 8
View: Interior view of the second floor.

Photo # 7 of 8
View: Interiaor view of the third floar.

Photo # 8 of 8
View: View of rear (west) and south facades, towards northeast.
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